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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CYGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Cygnet Industries
Limited (“the Company"), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025 and
a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and its loss (including other comprehensive
income), its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board's
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.




W]-EHA BOTHRA & CO 10, Lord Sinha Road

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS KRolkata-700071

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based*on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including Other Comprehensive Income, cash flows and Changes in Equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
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will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating etfectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
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audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirement

1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014.

{e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

()  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according
to the information and explanations given to us:
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M

(i)

(iii)

@iv)

)

(vi)

The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at
March 31, 2025 on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements — Refer Note 28.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2025.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the period
ended March 31, 2025.

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested by the Company to or in any other persons
or entities, including foreign entities, with the understanding whether
recorded in writing or otherwise , that the intermediary shall , whether
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner by or behalf of the Company (Ultimate beneficiaries) or provide
any guarantees , security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢. Based on such audit procedures that the we have considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and
(b) contain any material mis-statement.

The Company has not declared any dividend during the Year, so reporting
under this clause for compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act,
2013, is not applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020, issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act
(hereinafter referred to as the "Order™), and on the basis of such checks of the
books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the best of our information and explanation given
to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the current
year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For Neha Bothra & Company
Chartered Accountants
FR No.326938E

N Botlox
Neha Bothra
Kolkata Partner
Date: 171" April, 2025 Mem No— 667036

UDIN: 25067036 BMNQTQ1006
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 1(f) of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the
members of Cygnet Industries Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Cygnet
Industries Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
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obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
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reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Neha Bothra & Company
Chartered Accountants
FR No.326938E

N Boflas
Neha Bothra
Kolkata Partner
Date: 17t April, 2025 Mem No — 067036

UDIN: 25067036BMNQTQ1006
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Cygnet Industries
Limited of even date.)

i.  Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation, of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the company, the Company has a regular
program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment and
right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a phased
manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the
management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and records
examined by us the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties
where the company is the lessee and the lease agreement are duly executed in
favor of the lessee), as disclosed in note 3 on Property, Plant and Equipment
to the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company,

except for:
Desecription | Gross Held in the Name | Whether Period held- | Reason for
of Property | Carrying | of Promoter, | Indicate not being

value director or | range where | heldin

(Rs. In their appropriate | name of

lacs) relative company*

employee Not
Disputed
Freehold 13,660.27 | Kesoram Industries Promoter 8 to g years It is held in
Land and and Cotton Mills the name of
Building at Limited (now Holding
Kuntighat Kesoram Industries company
(50 cases) Limited, Holding
Company)
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Leasehold 234.92 Kesoram Industries Promoter 8 to 9 vears Itisheld in
Land (1 Case) and Cotton Mills the name of
Limited (now Holding
Kesoram Industries company
Limited, Holding
Company)

il

1ii.

(GY)

(e)

According to the information and explanations given to us and records
examined by us there has been no revaluation of Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records
examined by us there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder and hence,
reporting under this clause is not applicable to the company.

In respect of the Company’s Inventory and working capital,

(a)

(b)

The inventories, except for goods-in-transit and stock lying with third parties,
were physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the
year. In our opinion and based on the information and explanation given to
us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is
appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its
operations. For stocks held with third parties at the year-end, written
confirmations have been obtained and in respect of goods in transit, the goods
have been received subsequent to the year-end or confirmations have been
obtained from the parties. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of
inventories/alternate procedures performed as applicable, when compared
with books of accounts.

As per the information’s and explanations given to us by the management
there has been no sanction of working capital limits in excess of 5 crore rupees,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets; hence reporting under this clause is not applicable to the
company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence,
reporting under clause (iii) of the order is not applicable.
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v,

vil.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security in

respect of any loans to any party. Hence, reporting under clause (iii) of the order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amount which are deemed to be deposit. Hence, reporting
under clause (v) of the order is not applicable.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is
required to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in
respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed account and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) Amounts deducted or accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Service tax (GST), Provident fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other
material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with
appropriate authorities.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 315t March, 2025 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in in sub clause (a) above which have not
been deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes are given below:

Nature of the statute

Nature of dues

Forum where the dispute
pending

Period to
which the
amount
relates

Gross
Amount

(Rs.In
Lakhs)

Amount paid
under
Protest

(Rs. In
Lakhs)

Central Excise Act, 1944

Central Excise

Commissioner of Central
Excise (Appeals- IT)

September
2015-
June 2016

1.16

0.04

KOLKATA |

FRNo. 326938E/
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KARNATAKA Value | VAT Asst. Commissioner of 2017-18 5.06 nil
Added Tax Act, 2003 Commercial Tax (Karnataka
VAT Department)

West  Bengal  Value | West Bengal tax on Caleutta High Court April 2016- 153.32 nil
Added Tax Act, 2003 entry of goods into June 2017

local areas Act,2012
Goods and Services Tax | Goods & Service Tax| Commissioner — Appeal 2017-18 44.52 2.13
Act, 2017
Goods and Services Tax | Goods & Service Tax| Comimissioner - Appeal 2018-19 0.31 0.05
Act, 2017
Goods and Services Tax | Goods & Service Tax| Commissioner - Appeal 2020-21 70.32 3.94
Act, 2017
Goods and Services Tax | Goods & Service Tax Asst. Commissionet 2019-20 6.89 0.29
Act, 2017 (CGST)
Goods and Services Tax | Goods & Service Tax| Commissioner - Appeal 2019-20 485.89 44.17
Act, 2017
Goods and Services Tax | Goods & Service Tax] Commissioner - Appeal 2019-20 2.88 0.29
Act, 2017
Goods and Services Tax | Goods & Service Tax, Commissioner - Appeal 2020-21 6.90 0.63
Act, 2017
Goods and Services Tax | Goods & Service Tax Asst. Commissioner 2020-21 25.80 nil
Act, 2017 (CGST)
Goods and Services Tax | Goods & Service Tax|  Asst. Commissioner 2020-21 4.71 nil
Act, 2017 (CGST)
Goods and Services Tax | Goods & Service Tax Asst. Commissioner 2020-21 44.54 nil
Act, 2017 (CGST)

Viii.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records examined
by us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessment under the
Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information
and explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender as at the Balance
Sheet date.

(b) The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year
for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
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xi.

xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

examination of the financial statements of the company we report that no funds
raised on short term basis have been used for long term investment by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company
has not formed any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence reporting
under clause ix(e) of CARO 2020 is not applicable to the company

(f) The company has not formed any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and
hence reporting under clause ix(f) of CARO 2020 is not applicable to the company.

{(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, no money has been
raised by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer (including debt
instrument) and term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were
obtained.

(b) During the year the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement for shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause [x(b)] of CARO 2020 is not applicable to the company.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
officers or employees, noticed or reported during the period, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management.

(b) We have not filed any report under sub section (12) of section 143 of the
companies Act in Form ADT-4 and hence reporting under clause [xi(b)] of CARO
2020 is not applicable to the company.

(c) As per the information and explanation given to us by the company there are no
whistle blower complaints received during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the
company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transaction with the related parties and the details of related party
transaction have been disclosed in the financial statement as required by the
applicable standards.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its

14 |Page
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XVil.

Xviii.

Xix.

business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the company during the
year and covering the period up to 315 March, 2025.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies
Act are not applicable,

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b), (¢) and (d) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the books examined by us, the Company has incurred cash losses

during the immediately preceding financial year and current financial year. The
calculation is as follows: -

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
(Rs.in Lakhs) {(Rs. In Lakhs)
Net Cash Losses (3478.69) (4599.85)

There has been no resignation of Statutory Auditors during the year, and hence
reporting under Clause (xviii) of the Order, is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that the company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.

The Company has incurred losses in the immediately preceding three financial years
and hence no amount is required to be spent by the Company under sub-section (5)
of section 135 of the Act.
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xxi.  The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate and hence the company is
not preparing consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, reporting under
Clause (xxi) of the Order, is not applicable to the Company.

For Neha Bothra & Company
Chartered Accountants
FR No.326938E

KOLKATA
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: Neha Bothra

Kolkata Partner

Date: 17 April, 2025 Mem No — 067036
UDIN: 25067036BMNQTQ1006
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Cygnet Industries Limited
Balaiice Sheet as at 3istMarch, zoz5

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes 318t Mareh,

ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 42,205.35 43,407.97
(b) Right-of-use assets 3A 254.17 a19.30
(c) Capital work-in-progress 4A 540.76 898.86
{(d) Other intangible asscts 4 - -
(¢) Financial assets

(i) Investments 5 - =

(ii) Other financial assets 6 056.46 1,070.87
(f) fncome tax asset (Net) 30.82 130.83
() Other non-current assets 7 - 18.68
Total non-current assets 43,987,560 45,855-51

(2) Current asscts

(a) Inventories 8 3,641.39 4,826.88
(b} Finaneial assets

(i) Trade receivahles 9 3,235.72 2,644.04
i) Cash and cash cquivalents 10 433.79 68.60
Loans = "
(iv) Other financial assets 6 a80.57 -
(c) Other current assets 7 1,404.52 2,522.40
Total current assels 9,095.99 10,061.92
Total assets 53,083.55 55-917-43
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(1) Equity share capital 1 (a) 92,653.69 92,653.69
Equity pi
(k) Other equity 1 (b) (91,892.73) (85,800.02)
el
Total equity 760.96 6,853.67
Liabilities

(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial hizbilities

{i) Borrowings ] 15,206.94 18,290.80
{ii) Leage Liahility 154 10.80 66.13
(b) Provisions 17 356,50 363.52
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 13 u 2
Total non-current liabilities 15,574-24 18,720.45
{2) Curvent liabilities
(u) Financial labiliti
(1) Barrowings 1z 30,408.00 22,040.38
(5) Lease Liability 154 5954 62.71
(iii) Trade payable
‘Totai Qutstanding dues of micro enterprises and S5 568 2y Ba
small enterprises
Total Quistanding ducs of creditors other thanr micre 4R

enterprises and small enterpriscs 4.379.51 5,206.51
{iv) Other financial liabilities 5

5 1172.67 1,737.76
(h) Provisions 17 370.10 51.64
(c) Other current liahilities 16 350.55 916.50
Total current Habilities 36,748:35 3034332
Total liabilities 52,309.50 49,063.77
Total equity and liabilities 53,083.55 55.917:43
Nates forming part of the financial statements 1-40

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Balance Shect referred in our report of even date,

For Neha Bothra & Co. ,'NlW (”‘(';—_;_J/. ' Q_I%’D_J‘A

Tirm Registration Number: 326938E Khandelwal Sarat Priya Patjoshi
Chartered Accountants Director Director
DIN: 0748523 DIN: 66620290
A D eabak- knmnar Shavewa. % \ﬂ(zﬂv
N‘ ofirs Deepak Kumar
Neha Bothra Sharma harmila Nath
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 067036 DIN: 02555564 ‘ DIN: 07041921

1
ﬁﬂ'd-v\,usvv@\._‘

Raj Kumar Burman
Chief Financial Officer

= KoLKaTA
>\ FRNo. 426938E

M-JJ‘-',
\ I! v“(‘ 5
Ankita Agarwal
Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata
Dale : 17.04.2025




Cygnet Industries Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Period ended 31st March, 2025

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
s1st March.2025 338t March, 2624

Particulars

Revenue from operations 25,875.66 24,686.10
11 Other income 19 1,186.10 2,207.23
T Total Income (L+1I) 2%.061.76 26,8903.33
v Expenses:
(a) Cost of material consumed 20 11,408.65 10,435.70
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade 20 0.29 114
(¢) Power and Fuel 25A 4,747.27 6,153.91
(d) Changes in inventories of finished goods,work in progress and
stock-in-trade 21 545.94 (38.80)
(e) Employee benefit expenses 22 6,361.78 6,641.11
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 2,159.00 2,161.19
(g) Finance costs 24 2,783.07 4,074.72
(h) Other expenses 25 4,693.45 4,225.31
Total expenses 32,699.45 33,654.37
v Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (I1I-IV) (5,637.69) (6,761.03)
V1 Exceptional Items - =
VII Profit/(Loss) before tax (V+VI) (5,637.69) (6,761.03)
VIII Tax expense: 26
(1) Current tax charge / (credit) - -
(2) Deferred tax / (credit) - -
Total tax expense - -
X Profit/(Loss) for the year (VII-VIIl) (5,637.69) (6,761.03)
X Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit plans (455.03) 493.12
Fair value changes of investments in equity shares - -
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (455.03) 493.12
X1 Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (IxX+X) (6,092.72) (6,267.91)
XI1 Earnings per share 27
Basic (Rs.) (0.61) (0.73)
Diluted (Rs.) (0.61) (0.73)
X111 Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-40

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred in our report of even date.

For Neha Bothra & Co. i ”
Firm Registration Number: 326938E [INy }\O\Aﬁo}ﬂuﬁ“ € 7 - o_/% ,Q_/é’uk
e "

Chartered Accountants - “
Kashi Prasad Khandelwal Sarat Priya Patjoshi
Director Director
DIN: 0748523 DIN: 06620290

Neha Bothra Deepak Kumar Sharma Sharmila Nath
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 067036 DIN: 02555564 DIN: 07041921

ANV

Raj Kumar Burman
ief Efecutive Officer Chief Financial Officer

o=
" Ankita Agarwal
Company Secretary

a”‘g/

Place: Kolkata
Date : 17.04.2025




Cygnet Industries Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2025

A. Equity share capital

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Description Notes Amount
As at 31st March 2023 92,653.69
Changes in equity share capital 12 (a) 5
As at 31st March 2024 92,653.69
Changes in equity share capital 12 (a) S
As at 31st March 2025 92,653.69

B. Other equity

Particulars

FEVOCI - equity

LI Retained earnings Total other equity

Balance at 01 April 2024 - (85,800.02) (85,800.02)
Profit for the year = (5,637.68) (5,637.68)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) - (455.03) (455.03)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (6,092.71) (6,092.71)
Transfer within equity = = =

As at 315t March 2025 . (91,852.73) (91,892.73)
B. Other equity

Particulars

FVOCI - equity

: Retai earnings Total other equil
instruments etained earnings er equity

Balance at 01 April 2023 = (79,532.11) (79,532.11)
Profit for the year - (6,761.03) (6,761.03)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) - 493.12 493.12
Total comprehensive income for the year - (6,267.91) (6,267.91)
Transfer within equity - - -

As at 31st March 2024 - (85,800.02) (85,800.02)

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Neha Bothra & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 326938E
Chartered Accountants

N Rotlr
Neha Bothra
Partner
Membership No.: 067036

Place: Kolkata
Date : 17.04.2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Cygnet Industries Limited

Szr:it/ﬁriya Patjoshi
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<
Kashi Prasad Khandelwal °
Director Director
DIN: 0748523 DIN: 06620290
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Deepak Kumar

Sharma harmila Nath
Director Director

DIN: 02555564 DIN: 07041921

i
(@%NM WOl
Raj Kumar Burman
Chief Financial Officer

Ankita Agarwal
Company Secretary




Cygnet Industries Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 315t March, 2025

Year ended 1 ended
3t Marchzo2s 31 March,2024
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit/(Lass) before tax (5,637.69} (6,761.03)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 2,159.00 2,161.18
Provision for bad and doubtful debts/advances and others 126.88 49.63
Finance costs 2,783.07 4,074.72
Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign currency fluctuation (0.g0) -
Unrealised loss/(gain) on modification of lease lability - -
Loss/ (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 164 .06
Loss/ (gain) on sale of investments (net} - -
Capital Work in Progress written off 79.09 =
Liabilities/Provision no longer required written back (net) (870.57) (595.95)
Dividend Income - -
Interest income (98.70) (1,504.87)
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes (1,458.17) (2,576.24)
Changes in Working Capital:
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables (1,552.66) (1,378.58)
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables 37112 (3,206.55)
(Increase) / decrease in inventories 1,185.47 31112
Cash Generated from Operations
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 124.30 (116.82)
Net cash generated/(used) in operating activities (1,329.94) {6,967.07)
B. Cash flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets/Capital Advance given (602.79) (250.21)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.46 0.04
Sale of equity shares and units of mutual fund - =
FD Created/Renewed (641.94) (1,302.42)
FD Matured 472.00 1,104.78
Loan to body corporate - (625.00)
Repayment of Loan by body corporate = 5,782.81
Dividend received = =
Interest received 14.47 2,705.35 |
Net cash generated/(used) in investing activities (757.80) 7,325.35
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Finance cost paid (2,507.04) {2,321.14)
Payment of Lease obligations (74.97) (68.43)
Proceeds from
- Short term borrowings 12,536.70 2.531.87
- Long term borrowings 1,955.00 5,199.67
Repayment of
- Short term borrowings (3,208.94) (3,022.25)
- Long term borrowings (5,647.92) (2,722.75)
Nel cash generated from financing activities 2,452.92 (403.03)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 365.19 {44.75)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 68.60 113.35
Less: Cash credits at the beginning of the year - -
Adjusted cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 68.60 113.35
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 433.79 68.60
Cash and Cash Equivalents omprisc t
Cash in hand 0.01 0.00
Balances with banks on current account - -
Cash credits #/ Overdraft at the end of the year 433.78 68.60
Deposit with original maturity for less than three months - -
433.79 68.60

Figures in bracket represents outflows.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

# Includes Rs 5.06 lakhs (Corresponding Previous Year - Rs 5.06 lakhs available for vestricted use. The restrictions is mginify on account of cash
credit account and it pertains to demand from Govt Authorities for levy of interest on outstanding declaration jorms,

For Neha Bothra & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 326938E
Chartered Accountants

N ﬂ Ofhine. ,
Neha Bothra
Partner
Membership No.: 067036

Place: Kolkata
Date : 17.04.2025
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Director
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Cygnet Industries Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements

1.

Company Information

Cygnet Industries Limited ("the Company") is a public company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company was incorporated on
15th June, 2015. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing Rayon,
Transparent paper and Chemicals at Kuntighat, District Hooghly, West Bengal with registered
office at Kolkata, West Bengal.

The financial statements as at 315t March, 2025 present the financial position of the Company.

The financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025 were approved by the Board of
Directors and authorized for issue on 171 April, 2025.

Summary of material accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the
exception of certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair values by Ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

a) Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises of purchase cost, borrowing
costs if capitalization criteria are met and other directly attributable cost of bringing the assets
to its working condition for intended use. The cost also comprises of exchange differences
arising on translation / settlement of long term foreign currency monetary items pertaining
to acquisition of such depreciable asset. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price.

b) Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant & equipment is added to its
carrying amount only if it increases the future benefits from the existing assets beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance.




c¢) Capital work in progress is stated at cost (including borrowing cost, where applicable and
adjustment for exchange difference referred on Note 2.13 below) incurred during
construction/installation period relating to items or projects in progress.

d) Losses arising from the retirement of and gains or losses arising from disposal of property,
plant and equipment which are carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of profit and

loss.

e) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Class of assets Estimated useful life (in years)
Buildings 3 to 60 Years

Plant and Equipment 51to 40 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 3 to 10 Years

Office Equipment 3to 10 Years

Vehicles 8 Years

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
asset's useful life or over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

2.3 Intangible assets

Intangible property, plant and equipment are capitalized where it is expected to provide future
enduring economic benefits and amortized on a straight line basis. Capitalization costs include
license fees and the cost of implementation/ system integration services. The Costs are
capitalized in the year in which the relevant intangible asset is implemented for use.

Class of assets Estimated useful life (in years)

Software

2.4 Impairment

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

KOLKATA
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2.5 Lease

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 — Leases using the modified
retrospective method. Under modified retrospective approach, the Company has recorded
lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the
incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease
recognized under Ind AS 17. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate for leases
initially recognized upon the first-time application of Ind AS 116 was 11.89%. The Company
applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

The Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing
arrangements, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. The
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an
identified asset and the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset
shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs
incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation, accumulated impairment logses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of
the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. When the lease liability is re-measured due to change in contract
terms, a corresponding change is made to the carrying amount of right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in the profit and loss account if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset is reduced
1o zero.

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance lease. Such assets acquired are capitalized at fair value of the asset or
present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower.
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred
to the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost
mncreases.




As a lessor:

In respect of assets given on operating lease, the lease rental income is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are
structured to inecrease in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected
inflationary cost increases. There is no change in accounting as a lessor due to adoption of Ind
AS 116 Leases.

2.6 Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on weighted
average / first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis, as considered appropriate by the Company. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labor, other direct costs
and related production overheads. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Provision is
made for obsolete/slow moving/defective stocks, wherever necessary.

2.7 Finanecial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
instrument and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(a) Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Other bank balances

Other bank balances include deposits with maturity less than twelve months but greater than
three months and balanees and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and

usage.

b
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Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at ‘Fair value through other comprehensive income’ (FVOCI) if
these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures) which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments. Such
an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial
recognition of such equity investments.

Financial asset not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income is carried at ‘Fair value through the statement of profit and loss’ (FVPL).

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the “Expected credit losses’ (ECL) associated
with its assets carried at amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The Company recognizes
loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial asset.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from
initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire or it transfers the finanecial asset and substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the finaneial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.




(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method where the
time value of money is significant.

Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of
borrowings is recognized over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes finanecial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company uses certain derivative financial instruments
to reduce business risks which arise from its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate
fluctuations. The instruments are confined principally to forward foreign exchange contracts

Derivatives are initially accounted for and measured at fair value from the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each
reporting period.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolveney or bankruptey of the
Company or the counterparty.




2.8 Employee Benefits
Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments
made to state managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined
contribution schemes where the Company’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to
those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each balance sheet
date. Re-measurement gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are
recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost and net interest on
the net defined benefit liability/(asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs.

Past service cost is recognized as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs
or when any related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognized, whichever is
earlier.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value
of the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value plan assets.

Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences which are expected to be availed or encashed within
twelve months from the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation
towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as
the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlements as at the year
end.

Accumulated compensated absences which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond
twelve months from the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The
Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the
end of each year. Actuarial loss/gains are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
year in which they arise.

Short-term Employee Benefits (i.e. benefits payable within one year) are recognized in the
period in which employee services are rendered.

ind AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement:

The amendment requires an entity to use updated assumptions to determine current service
costs and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement, and to recognize in the Statement of Profit and Loss as part of past service cost, or
gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously
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recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling. The adoption of the standard did not have
any material impact to the financial statements.

2.9 Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and
presented within other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

2.10 Provision and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions: Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liahilities are disclosed when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.

2,11 Taxes on Income

Taxes on income comprises of current taxes and deferred taxes. Current tax in the Statement
of Profit and Loss is provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
period using tax rates and tax laws enacted during the period, together with any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities and the amounts used for taxation purposes (tax base), at the tax rates and tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
are recognized for the future tax consequences to the extent it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

KOLKATA
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Deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or
equity, are disclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax
laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set
off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in
the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future
economic benefit agsociated with the asset will be realized.

Ind AS 12 — Income taxes — Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to
the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over the income tax treatments under Ind AS 12.
According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax
authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have
used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most
likely amount or the expected value of tax treatment when determining taxable profit / loss, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and the tax rates. The standard permits two
possible methods of transition — (i) Full Retrospective Approach — Under this approach,
Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,
without using hindsight and (i1) Retrospective with cumulative effect of initially applying
Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting
comparatives. The effective date of for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual period
beginning on or after April 01, 2019. The company will adopt the standard on April o1, 2019
and has decided to adjusted the cumulative effect of in equity on the date of initial application
Le. April 01, 2019 if any without adjusting comparatives. The adoption of this standard did not
have any material impact to the financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12:

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall
recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or
events. The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact to the financial
statements. It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where the
entity pays a tax on dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to the taxation




authorities on behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid or payable to taxation authorities
continues to be charged to equity as a part of dividend in accordance with Ind AS 12.

2.12 Revenue Recognition

Revenue shall be recognized to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services.

Sales of goods

Sales are recognized when control of the products has been transferred to the buyer, the buyer has
full discretion over the channel and price to sell and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the buyer’s acceptance of the products per the terms of the contract and no significant uncertainty
exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. Tt
includes excise duty and excludes value added tax/sales tax/Goods and Service tax.

Revenue is recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume
discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts, using the
expected value method, and revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal will not occur. A contract liability is recognized for expected volume discounts
payable to customers in relation to sales made until the end of the reporting period,

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is
due, which are otherwise recorded as contract assets.

Interest Income

Interest income is acertied on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
the effective interest rate applicable

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s rights to receive payment
have been established.

Rental Income

Rental income from investment properties and subletting of properties is recognized on a time
proportion basis over the term of the relevant leases.

2.13 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred in connection with borrowing and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifving assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Premium in the form of fees paid on refinaneing of loans are accounted
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for as an expense over the life of the loan using effective interest rate method. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

2.14 Foreign currency transactions and translations

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is the
functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions
remaining unsettled at the end of the year are translated at year end exchange rates.
Gains/losses arising out of fluctuations in the exchange rates are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

2.15 Research and Development Expenditure

Revenue Expenditure on Research and Development is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which it is incurred and Capital Expenditure relating to Research and
Development are included in property, plant and equipment.

2.16 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per shore

Basic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing:
« The profit attributable to owners of the Company
= By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(11) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

« The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

= The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares




2.17 Segment reporting

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of manufacturing Rayon, Transparent Paper
and Chemicals. The Company operates in local and export segments geographically.

The Company’s organizational structure and governance processes are designed to support
effective management of Rayon, Transparent Paper and Chemicals business. The business
results have been reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Board of Directors, which is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (Refer note 34).

2.18 Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

2.19

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying values of assets and labilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future
periods affected.

Significant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities
include useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, impairment of
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investments, provision for employee
benefits and other provisions, recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and
contingencies, measurement of lease liability and Right to Use Asset.

Rounding off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest Lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(Al amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 3: Property, plant and equipment

Additions Adiushnenisi

during the Sotgl ﬂumg

1 5 T‘lnglbl( As
Land :
- Freehold # 13,660.27 - = 13,600.27 = - = : 13.660.27
Buildings 16.945.78 85.73 17,031.51 4,098.13 512.03 4.61L.06 12,420.45
Plant and Equipment 27,965.77 801.39 .31 28,766.80 11,125.79 1,551.16 0.15 12,676.80 16,090.00
Furmiture and Fixiures 180.79 0.30 6.79 174.30 134.99 17.91 5.30 147.54 26.76
Office Equipment 60.05 0.41 3.17 67.19 62.12 237 2.66 61.83 5:36
Vehicles 34.42 0.15 = 34.57 27.98 4.08 - 32.06 2.51
58,856.98 887.93 10.27 59.734.64 | 15,449.01 2,088.35 8.7 17.529.29 42,205.35
# Transfer of title of the entire land measuring 101.762 acres is under process.

* Property, plant and equipment are mortgaged against loan taken from WBIDFC. (Refer Note 12)

DT LB i e i i b i N S R ™ ] 2T 2 DEPRE TIGN TR
Particulacs Additions Adjostments/ \s i Upto Provided Adjnstments Upto
duringthe Sold during  gist Mareh, iApril  duringthe doringthe gistMarch,
i TR e ) ¥ the Year 2024, zopg . Year  Year  zosg
1. Tangible Assets: *
Land :
- Freehold # 13,660.27 - - 13.660.27 = = - - 13,660.27
Buildings 16,903.74 42.04 = 16,945.78 3,580.21 511.92 - 4,008.13 12,847.05
Plant and Equipment 26.896.82 1,068.95 - 27,965.77 9,614.80 1,510.99 = 11,125.79 16,839.98
Furniture and Fixtures 180.03 0.76 - 180.79 116.58 18.41 - 134.99 45.80
Office Equipment 70.58 1.54 2.17 69.95 61.00 3.18 2.06 bzaz 7.82
Vehicles 34.42 - E 34.42 23.89 4.09 - 27.98 6.44
57,745.86 1,113.29 2.17 58.856.98 | 13.402.48 2,048.59 2.06 15.449.01 43.407.97

# Transferof title of the entire land measuring 101.762 acres is under process.
* Property, plant and equipment are mortgaged against loan taken from WBIDFC. (Refer Note 12)

Note: 3A Right to Use Assets

DEPRECIATION
Additions Ad_;ustmentsf Upto Provided  Adjustinents Upto

Particulars

duringthe Soldduring  sistMarch, | 1April  duoringthe durmsthe g1st March, | 218t Mavch, |
the Year 2025 Hooposg ... Year | . wzoRs 025,

" “ o .9 . B e 234.92 38.81 4.85 43.66 191.26
Building 401.54 5.41 = 406.95 278.34 65.70 - 344.04 62.91
636.46 5.41 - 641.87 317.15 70.55 - 387.70 254.17

## The registration of leasehold land is in process.
$ Reclassified from Lease hold asset to Right-to-use asset as per Ind AS 116 with effect from 01.04.2019 (Refer note no. 36)

T GROSSBIOCK-ATCOSY i O UUUDEPRECIATION T THINET BLOCK
As at Additions Adjustments/ Upto Provided Adjustiments Upto As at :
during the Sold during 1st 1 April during the ﬂuri_ng the <35t Mareh, | z1stMarch,
T Aprilzozg | ¥ear ] 0 An : I 2
Land ## $ 234.92 4 33.0 4.85 38.81 a6.
Building 264.98 136.55 - .55 220.42 57.92 - 278.34 123.19
499.90 136.55 - . 254.38 62.77 - 317.15 319.30

Particulars

## The registration of leasehold land is in process.
$ Reclassified from Lease hold asset to Right-to-use assel as per Ind AS 116 with effect {rom 01.04.2019 (Refer note no. 36)

Note 4: Other intangible assets

Asat Additions Adjustments/ As at i Upto Provided Adinstinents Upto Asat
duringthe  Soldduring * syctMarch, | vApril  duringthe duringthe  g:st March, | 315t March,
o A A SRR SRV 1 § prilzozg  Xear  the¥ear = 2035 L 2024 Year Year 2025 L ;
Computer Software 179.38 - - 179.38 179-38 - - 179.38 -
[ 17938 - - 179.38 | 179.38 - - 179.38 | - 1
GROSSBLOCK-ATCOST 7 i 7777 T DEPRECIATION
: Additions Adjustmenis) As at Upto Provided Adjustmments Upto
Particulars i B ; ¥ H
during the Sold during o5t March, 1 April during the  dnringthe 335t March, |
AL TR _ Year  theYear = 2024 | sozy  Yesr  Wear
Computer Software 179.38 - - 179. 38 129.55 49. 8‘; - 179.38
[ [ 179.38 - - 179.38 | 129.55 49.83 - 179.38 | - |

(i) Property, plant and equipment pledged as security
Refer to note 12 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Company.

(it) Contractual obligations
Refer to note 2¢ for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lalchs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4A;:- CAPITAL-WORK IN PROGRESS (CWIP) AGEING SCHEDULE

""" z1ist Mar, zoz5 ; 3ist Mar, 2024

. Amount in CWIP for a period of 0 ‘Amount in CWIP for a eriod of

Particulars More than ' Morethan

< 1year. 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total < 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total
- Projects in progress 2.47 149.24 60.09 24.13 235.93 210.13 87.70 0.93 1.15 200.90
- Projects temporarily suspended 0.41 - - 304.42 304.83 0.30 4 0.01 508.65 508.06
Total =.88 149.24 00.09 328.55 540.76 210.43 8§7.70 0.94 599.80 898.86

CAPITAL-WORK IN PROGRESS (CWIP) whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its oviginal plan .

. 31st Mar, 2025, . . A e e . 3istMar, z02

e,

" Tobecompletedin ™' . * To becompletedin

5 = 3

|- ProjectInProgress = i i . -Morethan ;. B, a0 Morethan
Lokt 2-3vears | ', 3years-: Total <iyear ' | 1-2years 2-3 years 3 years

Modify ESP of boiler no 6 91.95 - - - 91.95 - - - - -

Spinning Machine (6) Overhauling- 2 54.43 . - - 54.43 N = = = =

TP 2 - Casting Head Lip 24.12 - - . 24.12 10.05 - 10.05

Others # - - - - - 4.91 - - - 4.91

Total 170.50 - - - 170.50 14.96 - - - 14.96

# Others includes project which cost is less than 10 lakhs rupees.

**Details of projeets where activity has been suspended

" Tobe completed in

B More than'

roje’étsilspended» T i 3 g ; Piv s = ¢
- Slyear ., '1-2Years 2-3YVears- . - ‘3year : [ A2 VeArs, | ! years! . -3 years .

1 e st I .

UPGRADATION OF TP LINE - - - - - “ 199.00 199.00
TP 2 - PMMA Addition - 5 - - - - 8.19 .- - 8.39
Upgradation of Crystallizer - - 2 - - - 10,22 - o 10.22
TP 2 - Edge Trimming in upwinding - - - - - 1:43 - - 1.43
ACID ABSORPTION CRYSTALLIZE] - 78.15 = - 78.15 - 7ea5 - = 78.15
Acid Absorption Crystallizer- ol 52. - 216.05 - - 216.05 . 30178 - 301.78
Replacement of Crystallizer ' - 10,22 3 10.22 - =
PSY §/B addilional retun line 0.41 - - - 0.41 - - - - -
Total 0.41 304.42 - - 304.83 9.81 88.37 500.78 = 598.96




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Note 5 : Investments

H Face 31st March, 31st March,
Particulars value 2025 2024

Non-current
A. Investiments carried at amortised cost:
NSC savings certificate
Less:-Provision for impairment in value of investment
B. Investments carried at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):
Investments in Equity shares
(1) Quoted
NIL ( 31 March, 2024: NIL)

0.70 0.70
(0.70) (0.70)

Classified as:
Current
Non-Current

(1) The carrying value and market value of quoted and unquoted investments are as below:

(a) Quoted
Carrying value
Market value

(b) Unquoted
Carrying value




Cygnel Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Nole 6: Other Financial Asset

Particulars 31st March,z025 31st March,2o024
Non-current
Securily Deposits (Unsecured-Considered Good) 15.63 12.63
Deposit with Bank # 862,34 1,035.60
Interest accrued on deposits 78.49 31.64
956.46 1,079.87
Current
Deposit with Bank /Financial Institutions # 343.19 -
Inlerest acerued on deposits/loan 37.38 -
380.57 =
# Deposit with Bank includes:-
- Deposits pledged with the govt. authorities 1.49 149
- Deposits pledged with WBIDFC for DSRA
for secured borrowings (Refer Note 12) 691.06 691.06
- Deposits against which Bank Guarantee has been
issued in favour of Government Authorities 512.98 343.05

Note 7: Other assets
- Particulars

215t March,2025 318t in-lz@rei:,m:um |

Non-Current

Capilal Advances 5 18.68
- 18.68
Current
Advance recoverable in cash or kind 1,354.71 2,274.57
Less:- Allowances for doubtful advances (18.63) (18.63)
Balances with statutory/Government Authorities 22.09 0.01
Prepaid Expenses 44.41 53.66
Receivable from Gratuity Fund ( refer nole 22) - 209.46
Accruals under duty exemption scheme 1.94 3-33
1,404.52 2,522.40

Note 8: Inve

ntories #

i i _ Particulars
Raw Materials

3ist L‘larch,zp_zs

31st Miq-ch_,eoelq. :

560.37 468.40
Work-in-Progress 712.55 797.05
Finished Goods 1,313.95 1,775.10
Stock-in-trade = 0.29
Stores and Spare Parts 1,054.52 1,786.04
3,641.39 4,826.88

Included above, goods-in-transit:
Raw materials 21.75 7.09
Fimished goods 69.40 16.52
Stores aud spare parls” 22.82 81.97
113.97 105.58

* The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes Rs. 19.26 Lakhs/- (315t March, 2024 -
Rs. 0.075 Lakhs/-) in respeet of write-downs of slow moving/non moving and obsolete inventory.
# Refer Note no 12 for information on current assets pledged as security by the company.




(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 9: Trade receivables #

Particulars

. 31st March,2025

315t March,2024

Current

Trade Receivables

() Secured, considered good - s

(b) Unsecured, eonsidered good 3,339.02 2,700,12

Less: allowances for expected credit loss (103.30) (56.08)

() Credit impaired 96.36 16,70
3.332.08 2,660.74

Allowance for eredit losses (96.36) (16.70)
3,235.72 2,044.04

# Refer Note no 12 for information on current assets pledged as sceurity by the company.

Particulars

31~03-2025

Oustanding for following periods from due date of Payments

Not Due

Less than 6

6 months -1

1-2 years

More than 3

\ F MY . months year years
Undisputed Trade Receivables - R i 5 = 5
(i) Secured - considered good - = 2 z 8 =
(if) Unsecured - considered good 2,183.35 1,123.13 18.00 14.54 E 3,339.02
Disputed Trade Receivables = = = = E =
(i) Secured - considered good = = = = E 5
(ii) Unsecured - credit impaired - u : 3,39 92.97 96.30
TOTAL 2,183.35 1,123.13 18.00 17.93 92.97 | 2.435.28
Less: Allowance for Loss 199.60
TOTAL 2,183.35 | 112343 | 18.00 | 17.93 | 92,97 | 3,235.72

P‘.\rticulars_‘

31-03-2024

Ousteirédi.ng for foliowing periods from due date of Payments

* Not Due

'—Le‘ﬁ than 6

6 months -1

1-2 years

More than 3 ' |

o A o months year years

Undisputed Trade Receivables -

(i) Secured - considered good - - - 2
(ii)} Unsecured - considered good 1,884.80 0648.42 36.06 547 - 2.700.12
Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -

(1) Secured - considered good - - - - - -
(ii) Unsecured - credit impaired - - - 1.84 - 16.70
TOTAL 1,884.80 648.42 36.06 7.31 = 2,716.82
Less: Allowance for Loss 72,78
TOTAL 1,884.80 | 648.42 | 36.06 | .31 | 5 2.644.04

Note 1

sh and cash equivalents

Hiesd 4
G and cash equivalents

Cash in hand 0.01 =
Balances with bank
On Current accounts - -
Ou Cash Credit Accounts# 433.78 68.60
Deposit with original maturity for less than three - -
muonths
433.-79 68.60

# Includes Rs 5.006lakhs (Corresponding Previous Year - Rs 5.06Lakhs) available for restricted use.
The restrictions pertains to demand from Govt Authorities for levy of interest on outstanding
declaration forms




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

Note 11: Equity share capital and other equity
Note 11 (a): Equity share capital
Authorised equity share capital ] ‘
Particulars ' 315t March,2025 3ist lwlarcﬁ;zuz4

100,00,00,000 Equity Shaves of Rs 10 each

(31 March 2024: 1,00.00,00,000 Equily Shares of Rs. 10 each) L,00,000.00 1,00,000.00

1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00

Issucd, subscribed and paid-up ¢quity share capital

Particulars

31st March,2025 31st March,zo24

92,05,36,876 Equity Shares of Rs 10 cach fully paid up
(31 March 2024: 92,065,36,876 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully 92,653.69 92.053.69
paid up)

92,653.69 92,653.69

Share Ilolding of Promoters
Share held by promoters at the end of the year

S No. Promoter Name No.Of shares' % of Total Shares % of Total Shares peafichangs

Lk o 3 during the year
1) Kesoram Industries Limited 92,65,36,876 100% 100%
I TOTAL 92,05,30,876 100% 100% ]

(1) Movement in equity share capital

4 Pax:ticulars ) a Jast March,éozs 31st March.2024
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 92,65,36,876 92,65,36,870
Add: Shares issued during the period -

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period 92,05,30,8706

92,05,36,870

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has equily shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. All equity shareholders are entitled o one vote per share. The Compimy declares and pays dividend
in Indian rupeces. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject Lo the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case of
mterim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amounts, in the proportion to their shareholdings.

: 315t March,5025 . . AistMarchi2024
s -'4 ¥ Nameoftheshareholders « - - - ° . Numberof -: :

ii) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the ageregate shares in the Compan

Fator e ;L el Number of
b R ey . i .ghares. | Ehaloine Wit ho.ldl-nﬁ ', ' ‘Shares
Kesoram Industries Limited 92,05,36,876 100% 100% 92,65,36.876

[ 92,65,30,876 100% 100% 2,65,30,876 |

Note 11 (b) : Other Equity

A

£

Particulars - . AT 315t March,2025 * 31st March,2024

(i) Retained earnings (91,892.73) (85.800.02)

(ii) Fair value through otiier comprehensive income - -
(FVOCI)- equity instruments

Total reserves and surplus (91,892.73) (85.800.02)

(i) Retained earning

3 s = % 3 R Fy S I TN = » I
et Particulars Tl .., 't st March,2025 3ist March,2024
Opening balaneu {85,800.09) (7a.532.11)

Net profit/(loss) for the period (5,037.68) (0,761.03)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised divectly in

relained earnings

-~ Remeasurement of post-employment benefil obligation, net (455.03) 19312
of tax "

Trunsler in equity -
Closing balance {91,892.73) (85.800.02)

instruments
" e Particulars” " 51 ) S Ve 315t Mareh;2925 315t Mareh:
Opening balance
Change in [iir value of FVOCT equity instruments -
Transfer in equity
Closing balance

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)- equity

Nature and purpose of sther reserves

{111} Fatr value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)- equity instiuments

The cumulative gains and losses arising on fair vadue changes of equity mvestiments measured at fairvalue through other comprehensive income are recognised m FVOCT
equily instrinments reserve, The balanee of the veserve represents such changes recopmised net of amounts reclassified to retwned earmings on disposal of such
investments.




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notc 12: Borrowings (measured at amortised cost)

Particulars

Non-Cuzent
(1) Secured
“Term Loan from bunks [Kefer note (3

below)
s [Refer nute (b) below]

m Loan frm Finaneial (nstitutio
(b} Unsecured

“Term Loan from banls

“levm Loan from Financial lnstitutions

17306499

4,147,092
1742003

21,568.55

(b) Unsees
Short term Luan from bank

om holding company (Bearing miterest)
penn Body Corpotate (Bearing interest)

Borrawiags

Borrgwings

17.306.94
Less: Current maturiies of long term barrowmgs 2,100.00 H2TT.
Add: Interest accrucd on long term borrowings - -
1520669 18:290.80 |
Current [Refer note (¢) below]
{a) Securcd
Wuorking Capital Loan from bunks
Term Loan from Banks = =
Add: Current maturities of long term borrowings 2,100.00 B2TITR

13.6006.57
RO

25,7618

17,011.0

Add: Interest accrued on shorl term borrowings

4,046 82

4429 31

_ 30.408.00

22.040.48

Netdebt reconcilintion

equiv
Non-current burrowings

133
(15,200 ugl
Caugult ool

(35.181a5)

(40,262.58)

Particulars

Other asscts
Cash and cash
equivalents

Liabilities from financing activitics -~
Non-current
borrowings

Current borrowings

Net debt as at 1 April zo2g 08.00 (18,290.80) (22,040.38)
Cash flows 365.19 g9y {9,327.85)
51 EXPrIEes = (2:99B.52) (272.73)
aid - 2,44 8.5 55.21 250373
s chargos paid - =
sation of processing Chages (31.41) 13133}
in cwrrent maturitics = (L177.75) 137775 =
Net debt as at g1st March 2025 4337 (15,200.94) (30,308.00) (45,181.15)

Particulars
(I M

at1 April zozs

Net debt as
Cash Mows
[ntere:
Interest paid

Processing charges pad
Amortisation of processing Charges

st expenses

Changes in curreat matuntios

Other asscis
Cash’and cash
cquivalents

Liabilitics from financing activitics

Non-current f-‘il rrent borrowings
i i T

113, (30 631.70)
(44.75) 2, l2.031.29}
= (2,157.32} {3 87)

7 235732 156.04 A4
(34.46) (163.67) (198.13)

645 00 (65001 -

Net debt as at gist March.2oz2g4

(18,290.80) (22,040.38)__(40,262.58)

Tndusind Bank

Indusind Bank

31-Mar-z4

Nature of Security

Ly7aae Second  Charge  over Repaid  dur thoy
Corrent Assets of the finanenl  year {REBALN
Com; y: 1lowever, the charge on
seeured assets have: not
been released il ds
Charge  over Repaid  during the
of the fisnnenl year 2oeg 25,

Fuwover, the chioge on|
s have nnt

e til date

(b) Repayment terms and nature of sceurities given for indian n
i g i Bank = & R
Term Loan from Financial Institutions:
WBIDFC

WRIDFC -1T

ee term loa:

1 from Financial institutions

Ag; . 31-Mar-z3 ]

11,192,228

6,114.67

~ 31-Mar-24.

Naturc'of Becurity  Repayment Terms

12460496 First  and  exclusive By way  of ballooning
charge on all Movable repayment  commencing

and Twmmovable fised from  grog20n for a

assets of Cygnet tenure of 10 1e.
Industries  Laonited

exeept  the  Corporitte

Office Assels

and part passu chacge
onall Current Asscts of
the Company
For fullfiling the DSRA

5059.67 First  aad  eaclusive By way
charge on all Movable repavment
and  Immevable  fised from
E: 15 of Cyvgnet

[odustries Lionted

except  the  Corporate

Office Assits

2ol parr passa chape

o all Current Ansets of

the Company

Por fullfiling the DSKA

of ballooning
comi

(e} Repayment terms and nature of securities given for shiort term borrowings

1. Loan from holding company is repayable on demand, interest p:
2. Short'Term loan trom Manav Investment And ‘Lrading Co Lid s

able 6710.5% p.a. However, the holid
ayable an demand, interest payable

pmapany has waived off interest for the carvent financial vear.
" 124,




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 13: Deferred tax liabilities
The balance comprsies temporary differences attributable to:

Particulars 3ist March; zo25 31st March, 2024

Deferred tax liabilities

Timing difference w.r.t Property, plant and equipment 4,939.58 5,285.90
Others 21.37 40.49
Gross deferred tax liability 4,970.95 5,326.39

Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed depreciation = -

Capital loss 397.79 636.46
Business losses 4,212.41 4,450.39
Others 360.75 239.54
Gross deferred tax asset 4,970.95 5,326.39

Net deferred tax liability - =




Cygnel Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Nole 14: Trade payables
) ¢ Particulars
Current

enterprises (Refer Note 30)
(b) Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than
micro, small and medium enterprises
(i) Acceptances
(ii) Others
Employee's benefits payable

() Tolal outstanding dues of micro, small and medium

o 31st March,z025

7.98

3,252.52
1,126.99

31st March,2024

327.82

3.811.20
1,395.31

4.379.51

5.2006.51

Particulars

31-03-2025

‘Fotal

L < 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 5.22 - - 2.76 7.98
(i1) Other Creditors 1,687.07 228.17 G§21.12 416.16 3,252.52
(iii) Provisions - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - = =
(v) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -
(vi) Employee's benefils payable 392.68 - - 734.31 1,126.99
TOTAL 2,084.06 228,17 921,12 1,153.24 4.387.49

Particulars |

(i) MSME

< 1 year

167.62

A
.t 1-2 years

21-03-2024

2-3 years

1.72 0.38

More than 3 years

18.10

327.82

Current

Retention & Earnest deposits 96.88 83.84
Other Payables# 1,075.79 1,653.92
1,172.67 1,737.76

# Other Payables includes amount of Rs 2.42 lakhs (FY 23-24: Rs 114.22 lakhs) payable to MSME Vendors on account of interest.

Note 15A: Lease liabilities

5 Pal_"ticulars

Non- Current

..31st March,2025

315t Maicﬁ,zbz};

Lease Liabilities 10.80 66.13
10.80 60.13

Current

Lease Liabilities 59.54 62.71
59.54 62.71

Note 16: Other liabilities
5 : o8 ﬁPart‘ici.‘llars

Current

' 33st March,2025.

31st March,z024

Advance from customers 3333 500.22

Statutory dues 317.22 410,28

Others - -
350.535 916.50

Note 17: Provision
B ) - Particnlars .

bt S PV 207
L

Non current
Provision for Employee Benelils
Provision for gratuity

.. 3ustMarch,2025

Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 356.50 363.52
Tolal Non-Current provisions 250.50 363.52
Current

Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for gratuity 344.00 -
Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 26.10 51.064
Total current provisions 370.10 51.64

Refer to note 22 for disclosure on employee benefits.

KOLKATA

RNo.326938¢

(if) Other Creditors 2,124.87 1,236.75 221,84 227.73 3,811.20
(iil) Provisions 5 = - = &
(iv) Disputed Dues - MSME - = = . %
(v) Disputed Dues - Others o = a E %
(vi) Employee's benelits payable 69.08 316.18 974.73 35.32 1,395.31
TOTAL 2,361.58 1,554.65 1,196.95 42115 5.534.33
Note 15: Other financial liabilities
! " Particulars 31st March,z2025. g1st March,2024



Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Notc 18; Revenue from operations

Particulars 31st J1st
March,z025 March,2024

Revenue from contracts with customers #
Sale of products 25,755.91 24,632.36
Other operating revenues 119.75 53.74
25,875.06 24,686.10

# The enlire revenue is being recorded at a point in time.

The Company has recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities

Partiond 318t 31st
arficulars March,2025 March,2024

Contract liabilities - Advance from customers %3.33 500.22

Total contract liabilities 33.33 500.22

The Change in Contract Liabilities are as follows

3ist 3ist

Particulars March,2025 March,2024

Contract Liabilitics Opening 500.22 395.91
Add:- Addition during the year, excluding amount

recognised as revenue during the vear 0.75 491.38
Less:- Revenue recognised in the current year which was

included in contract liabilities 467.64 387.07
Contract Liabilities Closing 3333 500.22

Note 19: Other Income

. 31st J1st
Particulars March,2025  March,2024
(a) Liabilities no longer required written back (net)* 870.57 595.95
(b) Interest income - -
- on financial instruments at amortised cost 93.11 64.17
- on others 559 1,440.70
(¢) Miscellaneous income 216.83 106.41
1,186.10 2,207.23

* Refer note 30 for liability written back on account of interest waiver by MSME Vendors.

Note 20: Cost of material consumed

- ist 1st
DU Margh,zozs B’Ial‘gh,2024
Opening inventory 468.40 1,039.76
Add: Purchases 11,500.62 9,864.43
Less: Closing Stack 560.37 468.40
11,408.65 10,435.79

Purchase of stock-in-trade comprise :

Particulars Base Unit 315t March, 2025
Rayon Yarn KG -
CTCTea KG 100

Quantity

31st March, 2024

300

Amount

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

0.29

1.14

0.29

1.14

Cost of material consumed of Traded Goods

A ist 1st
b Margh,zozs Margh,zoz.;
Opening inventory 0.30 0.01
Add: Purchases 0.28 1.14
Less: Closing Stock 0.01 0.29
0.57 0.86

Note 21: Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and Stock in Trade

; : 3ist gist
articulgrs March,2025 March,2024
Opening Stock
- Work - in - Process 797.05 626.87
- Finished Goods 1,775.10 1,906.77
- Stock-in-trade 0.30 0.01
Less: Closing Stock
-Work - in - Proeess 712.55 797.05
Finished Goods 1,313.95 1,775.10
Stock-in-trade Q.01 .30
545.94 (38.80)




Limited
Noles forming part of financial slalemenls

Cypnet Industyi

(All amounts in Rupees Lalhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note mplovee henefit expenses

i st March,2025 318t Mureh,2024
Particulurs® ? g

Salaries, Wages, Bonus et 5.351.91

5.379.08

Contribution to Prondent Fund 634.14 8i3.513
Contribution to Labour Wellare Fund 0.76

Contribution to Gratuily Fund (Refer detail below) 98.43 141.37

Contribution under Emplovees State Insurance Scheme 17.40 12.57

Worknrew and Stafl Welfare 250.14 201,50

6.,361.78 6.6.41.11

Dnig e vear the Company tevogised an amount of R Niloood 00090 Rs Nil ) as rematneration to key managerial personnel.

(1) Compensated absenves
Compensated absences cover e Company's Tability for sick and earned leave, As the Company does not have an unconditional vight to defer the payment bevond 12 months the entire wimount has
been treated as currem

(i) Defined benefit plan

a) Graluity

The Company operates o gratuity plan throngh the “KICM Gratuity Fund”, Feery emplovee is entitled to o henefit equivalent to fifteen das
with the Pavment ot Gratmhy Act, ta s The same is paxahle ar e re of sepacation rone the Company or retirement. whichever is earlior.

alavy Tast drawn for each comipleted venr of serviee in line
The benefits vestatter five vears of contimmos sepvi o

b Provident fund
Prosdent tuned por covtam chgable eophimees < managed by the Company through e =B K Bala Groupof Companies Provident Fund Institution” and "Bk Industeies Provident Bund®, i e willy
the Pravident Fund and Miscellaneons Provisions Act, 1950 The plan guarantees mlerest at the rate notified by the Provident Fund Authoritics: The conteibution by the emplover and cinployee
topether with the mterest aceumulated theveon are pavable 1o employees at the time of their separation from the Company or relivement, whichever is carlicr. The benetits vost immediately on
rendering of the services by the enmplovee,

The Company has an obligstion to e any shortfall en the vield of the trosts mvestments over the administered interest rates on an annual basis. These administered rates are determmed annualh

nrettomrmanth vonssdorimg the soval tathes than cconamme fetors and momost cases thesaernil petnm eaened by the Company Tas Been higher i e st Vears, Theactuarny as providet aoadoanes

o procadent e Latbites anveae bases ol govdanecssoertt by Actantal Socety of Indncand basedd on the below provided assumptions there s no shortall as at gest Nacels sore, aned g e o

tosmoetivel
T'he ool fuml amd plan asser posthionage given he
i i !

Presext valie
| v of obligation 157 . Gl
asat st Mareh, 19,383.01 10, 48T §1. 0
as at st March, oneg 18.270.06 10,501.40 vt A

Particulars

DNy

The plan assets have been primanly mvested in government securitics.

Assumphions nsed mdetermining the present value obligation of the interest vate guarantee under the Deterministic Approach:

Particulars 1} | : + 1 sstMarch,2025

Diiseont Ratedper anpum)

Expected Rate af Retues on Plan Assets (Der annmn |}

The Company contributed Rs. 64104 Lakhs and Rs, 81363 Lakhs during the yvear ended gast March, 2025 and 315t March, 2024 respectively.




(iit) Balance sheet recognition

Gratuity (All amounts in Rupees Lalkhs, unless otherwise stated)

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Fair valie of plan

-Particulars | Net amount

5 . assels

o - i ) a ks - “E Ya 2w v . |
01 April 2024 2,893.89 3,103.95 (209.46)
Current service cost 124.65 - 124.05
Interest expense/(income) 173.21 109.43 (26.22)
Total amounlt recognised in profit or loss 297.86 (199.43) 98.43
Remeasurement

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest - (190.71) 190.71
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumplions (1.89) - (1.89)
Actuarial (gain)/loss frum unexpected experience 266.20 - 266.20
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 264.31 (190.71) 455,03
Employer contributions/ premium paid - - -
Benelil payments 306.87 306.87 -
315l March, 2025 3,059.19 2,715.20 344.00

Present value =t
' of ohligation

 Net amount

B s

01 April 2023 2,495.07 ,352.78 142.30
Current service cost 131.41 - 131.41
Interest expense/(income) 174.66 164.70 9.96
Total amount recognised in profil or loss 3006.07 (164.70) 141.37
Remeasurement

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in inlerest - 585.88 (585.88)
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 58.94 = 58.94
Actuarial (gain)/loss [rom unexpecled experience 33.82 - 13.82
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 92.76 585.88 (493.12)
Employer contributions/ premium paid - - -
Benefit payments = = 2
318t March, 2024 2,893.90 3,103.36 (209.46)

(iv) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions
The significant actu
TR 5

Discount rate
Salary growth rate
Attrition rale

Mortality rate

5.00%
10 per thousand

IIAM (2012-2015)
ULTIMATE

5.00%
10 per thousand

HAM (2012-2015)
ULTIMATE




(v) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumplions is:

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Discountae(-/-;— 0.5% ] T ‘ 2,961.45 ] 3,161.50

2,790.50 3,002.47
% change compared to base due Lo sensitivity -3.20% 3-347% -3.57% 3.75%
Salary growth rate (-/+ 0.5%) 3,162.63 2,950.50 3,003.60 2,788.47
%6 change compared to base due Lo sensitivity 3.98% -3.26% 3.70% -3.64%
Atlrition rate (-/+ 0.5%) 3,059.38 3,059.01 2,804.13 2,893.60
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 0.01% ~0.01% 0.01% -0.01%
Life expeclancy/ mortality rate (-/+ 10%) 3,059.56 3,058.83 2,804.33 2,893.46
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 0.01% -0.01% 0.02% -0.02%

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to oceur, and changes in some of
the assumptions may be correlated. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligalion to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of
the defined benefit obligation caleulated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit
liability recognised in the balance sheet. '

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

(vi) The mejor categories of plans assets
The defined benefil plans are funded with insuranee companies of India. The Company does not have any liberty to manage the funds provided to insurance companies. Thus
the composition of each major category of plan assets has not been disclosed,

(vii) Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Investment risk:

The defined benefit plans are funded with insurance companies of India. The Company does not have any liberty to manage the funds provided to insurance companies.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caleulated using a discount rate determined by reference to the Government of India bonds. If the relurn on plan asset
is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk:

Adeerease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability,

Life expectancy:

‘The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and at the end of the
cmployment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will inerease the plan liability.

Salary growth risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will in
liability.

(viii) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
Expected contributions to post-employment benefits plans for the year ending 31 March, 2025 is Rs. NIL.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8 years (31 March 2024 — 9 years).




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 23: Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars 31st March,2025 31ist March,zo24
Depreciation on tangible assets 2,088.45 2,048.59
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 70.55 62.77
Amortisation of intangible assets - 49.83
2,150.00 2,161.19
Note 24: Finance costs
Particulars 31st March,2025 31st March,2024
Interest expense 2,774.51 4,062,206
Interest On Lease 11.06 13.92
2,785.57 4,076.18
Less: Inierest capitalised 2,50 1.45
2,783.07 4,074.72

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the inlerest rate applicable 1o the
entily's general borrowing used for capex , in this case it is 12%, (315t March, 2024: 12%

Note 25: Other expenses

Particulars 3ist March,2025 31st March,2024
Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 1,080.36 2,035.29
Rent 3.79 9.79
Repairs and Maintenance [Refer note (a) below]
Building 34.59 43.71
Plant and Machinery 745.69 762.30
Others 67.82 78.58
Insurance 54.95 54.59
Rates and Taxes 20.35 42.69
Brokerage 0.07 4.08
Packing, Carriage and Shipping 278.88 300.27
Direclor's Fees 4.00 5.50
Commission to Selling Agents 55.85 64.44
Sales Promotion 22.38 12.23
Management Services Fee 367.39 2309.25
Foreign currency translation loss (net) 6.24 32.70
Debts/ Advances/ Deposits writien off 1.28 10.52
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment sold/discarded (net) 1.64 0.06
Provision for doubtful debts/advances (net) 126.88 49.63
Payment to auditor [Refer note (b) below] 24.20 26.62
Guarantee Commission - 0.44
Miscellaneous Expenses [Refer note (¢) below] 707.09 452.62
4,693.45 4,225.31
(a) Repair and Maintenance includes:
Salaries and wages 498.07 544.03
(b) Details of anditors’ remuneralion and out-of-pocket expenses are as below:
As Auditors :
Audil Fees (Including other certification fecs) 21,78 24.20
Tax Audit Fees 2,48 2.42
(e) Miscellaneous expenses includes:
Payment to cost auditor 6.19 3.19
Note 25 A: Power and fuel
Particulars 31st March,2025 31st March,2024
Power and Fuel
(i) Power and Fuel includes consumption of stores and spares (coal) 3,264.27 4,406.16
(ii) Power and Fuel others 1,483.00 1,747.75
4,747-27 6,153.91




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 26: Income tax expense
This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, shows amounts that are recognised directly in equity and how the tax
expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in relation to the Company’s tax
positions.
- Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
(a) Income tax expense
Current tax - =
Current tax on profits for the vear - 5
Total current tax expense % 5

Deferred tax

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets 355.44 (17.27)
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities (355.44) 17.27
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) = =
Income tax expense 4 £

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:

: C Particulars : 31st March, 2025 31st March, zo24
Profit before tax (5,637.68) (6,761.03)
Tax at the rate of 29.12% (FY 2023-24 — 29.12%) (1,041.69) (1,068.81)
Reason for differences to be documented below

Tax losses for which no deferred tax was recognised 490.12 1,669.59
Tax on permanent differences 0.71 9.26
Exempt Income = =
Others (including difference in tax rate) 1,150.86 289.96
Total income tax expense/(credit) - -

(¢) Tax losses

Particulars ' 31st March, 2024

31st March, 2025

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax has been recognised:

Tax losses

Business loss 46,273.50 46,492.69
Capital loss: Short term 11,795.10 11,705.10
Unabsorbed tax depreciation 29,625.57 27,723.29
Potential tax benefit @ 29.12% on Business loss (FY 2023-24 @29.12%) 22.101.81 21,611.69
Potential tax benefit @ 23.206% on Capital loss short term (FY 2023-24 @17.472%) 2,747.79 2,060.84

(a) Unabsorbed depreciation does not have any expiry period.
(b) Business losses have an expiry ranging from 1 to 8 years as at the reporting date.




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 27: Earnings per shares

Particulars i : st 31stMarch,2025  3ist March,2024
(i) Basic

Number of equily shares at the beginning of the year 92,65,36,876 92,65,36,876
Number of equity shares at the end of the year 02,65,36,876 92,65,16,876
Weighted average number of equity shares 92,65,36,876 92,65,36,876
outstanding during the year (A)

Nominal value of each equity Share (Rs.) 10.00 1o.00
Profit / (Loss) for the year (Rs. in lakhs) (B) (5,637.69) (6,761.03)
Earnings per share (Basic) (Rs.) (B/A) (0.61) {0.73)

(i) Diluted
Weighted average number of equity shares 92,65,36,876 92,65,36,876
outstanding during the year

Earnings per share (Diluted) (Rs.) {0.61) (0.73)

Note 28: Contingent liabilities

Particulars Pheisiilie - = ‘ . 31st March,2025  31st March,2024

(a) Guarantees given -
(i) to excise authorities 5.50 5-50

(b) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
(i) Rates, Taxes, Duties ete. demanded by various Authorities 159.54 159.54
(ii) Others 1.50 1.50

(¢) Income Tax matters - =
166.54 166.54

In the opinion of the management, no provision is considered necessary for the disputes mentioned above on the ground that there are fair
chances of successful outcome of appeals.

Note 29: Capilal and other commitments

.Particulars = 31st March,2025 | 31st March,2024 -

(a) Capital Commitments
Estimated value of contracts in capital account remaining to be exceuted - 17.34
[net of advances Rs. nil (31st March, 2024: Rs. 18.68 lakhs)]|

- 17.34

Note 30: The Company has cerlain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
("MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows: remaining unpaid as at vear end

: - Particulars
Principal amount due 1o supplier registered underr 7.98 327.82
the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at the year

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 2.42 114.22
unpaid as at year end*®

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 617.06 605.00 |
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers = 2L
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the

vear

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered - -
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED = =
Act, for payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years et -

* During the current financial vear, the Company has made payment to various MSME Vendors . Accordingly, the company has reversed
liabiltity on account of such interest waiver amounting to Rs 114.22 Lakhs during the financial year,




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

Note 31: Capital management

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Risk management

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity sharcholders of the
Company which comprises issued share capital and accumulated reserves disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

The Company's capital management objective is to achieve an optimal weighted average cost of capital while continuing to safeguard the

Company's ability to meet its liquidily requirements (including its commitments in respect of capilal expenditure) and repay loans as they
fall due.

Note 32 : Fair value measurements

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance
sheet items that contain financial instruments,

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses arc recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, {inancial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in
Note 2 to the financial statements.

Financial instruments by category
31st March,2025

Particulars FVOCI Am:r;itsed Value
O

Financial assets - =

Total Fair

Cash and cash equivalents = - 433.79 433.79 433.79
Trade receivables » = 3,235.72 3,235.72 3,235.72
Loans = = - - -

Other financial assets - - 956.46 956.46 956,40
Total financial asscts . . 4,625.97 4,625.97 4,625.97

Financial liabilities

Borrowings e - 45,614.94 45,614.94 45,614.94
Trade and other payables - - 4,387.40 4,387.49 4,387.49
Lease Liability - - 70.34 70.34 70.34
Other financial liabilities - - 1,172,67 1,172.67 1,172.67
Total financial liabilities - - 51,245.44 51,245.44 51,245.44

Financial instruments by category

31st March,2024 Total Total Fair

Particulars Amortised Carrying
FVOCI o Vailae Value

Financial assets = 5

Cash and cash equivalents - - 68.60 68.60 68.60
Trade receivables - - 2,644.04 2,644.04 2,644.04
Loans = = = = e

Other financial assets - " 1,079.87 1,079.87 1,079.87
Total financial assets = s 3,792.51 3,792.51 3,792.51

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 40,331.18 40,331.18 40,331.18
Trade and other payables = = 5:534.33 5:634.33 5:534.33
Lease Liability = - 128.84 128.84 128.84
Other financial liabilities - - 1,737.77 1,737.77 1,737.77

Total financial liabilities - - 47,732.12 4773212 47,732.12
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(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 33: Financial risk management

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices, liquidity and credit risk,
which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company has z risk management policy which not only covers the foreign exchange risks but
also other risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities such as interest rate risks and credit risks. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of
Directors. The risk management framework aims to:

(1) ereate a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations on the Company's business plan.

(ii) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.

(A1) Credit risk

The Company takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company.
Finaneial assets that potentially expose the Company to credit risks are listed below:

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Trade receivables 3,235.72 2,644.04
Other financial assets 1,337.03 1,079.87
Total 4,572.75 3,723.91

Other receivables as stated above are due from the parties under normal course of the business and as such the Company believes exposure to credit risk to be minimal.

i) Trade and other receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company through established policy and procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables
are non-interest bearing and are generally earrying upto 9o days credit terms. The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at
various levels within organisation to ensure proper attention and focus for realisation. Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. Where credit risk
is high, domestic trade receiavbles are backed by security deposits. Export receivables are backed by letters of eredit.

In determining the allowances for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for
trade receivables based on a provision matrix, The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward locking information,
The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix.

The Company's exposure to customers is diversified and there is no significant eredit exposure on account of any single customer as at 31st March, 2025 & 31st March,
2024

The company is making provisions on trade receivables based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The reconciliation of ECL is as follows:

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Opening balance 72.78 41.78
Charge in statement of profit 126,88 St
and loss

Release to statement of profit
and loss
Utilised during the year

Balance at the end of the 199.66 72.78
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B . (All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(ii) Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level a, as
described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2):
This level of hierarchy includes finaneial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are
determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the
same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

31st March, 2025

Particulars
Level 2 Level 3 Total

Level 1

Financial assets:
Investments & = = -

31st March, 2024

Particulars
e Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets:
Investments = =

(iii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

(a) Investments carried at fair value are generally based on market price quotations. However in cases where quoted prices are not available the management has
involved valuation experts to determine the fair value of the investments. Different valuation techniques have been used by the valuers for different investments. Equity
Instruments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income. These investments in equity instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for long
term slralegic purpose. The Company has chosen to designate this investments in equity instruments at FVOCI since, it provides a more meaningful presentation.

(b) Fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows. The carrying amounts of other borrowings with floating rate of interest are
considered to be close to the fair value.

(¢) The carrying amounts of remaining financial assets and liabilities are considered Lo be the same as their fair values.

(d) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. Tlowever, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique.
Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have
realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from the
amounts reported at each reporting date.
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(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is
lo maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Furthermore, the Company has
access to funds from othersources. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and in equily shares, which carry no
or low market risk.

(1) Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the group's financial liabilities into relevant maturily groupings based on their contractual maturities for:
- all financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contraclual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than 1 3-5 More than

31st March,zo025 year }=3 years years 5 years

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 30,407.99 4,720.00 6,780.00 3,814.67 45,722.66
Lease Liability 63.56 11.27 = - 74.83
Trade payables 4,387.49 - - - 4,387.49
Other financial liabilities 1,172.67 - - - 1,172.67
Total financial liabilities 36,031.71 4,731.27  6,780.00 3,814.67 51,357.65

Contractl‘xal maturities of financial liabilities Less than 1 More than

1- 3 years

31st March,2024 year 5 years

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 22,040.38 6,355.17  5,735.00 6,339.67 40,470,22
Lease Liability 73.95 70.17 - - 143.52
Trade payables 5:534.33 - - - 5,534.33
Other financial liabilities 8 27 Lo iy i = - - 1,757.77
Total financial liabilities 29,385.83 6,425.34  5,735.00 6,339.67 47,885.84

KOLKATA
FRNo. 326938
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(C) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk
The Company deals with foreign currency loan, trade payables et and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk associated with exchange rate
movement.

The Company operates internationally and portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently the Company is exposed to
foreign exchange risk through its sales in overseas and purchases from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. Foreign currency exchange rate
exposure is partly balanced by purchasing of goods, commodities and services in the respective currencies.

Foreign currency risk exposure

The company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR (foreign currency amount multiplied by closing
rate), are as follows:-

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at 315t March,2025
L5 ‘ USD

_Particulars Amount in foreign Amountin
currency local currency

Financial assets
Trade receivables 0.59 50.57
Derivative Asset = -
Advance receivable in eash or kind = .

Financial liabilities
Trade payables - -
Borrowings - o
Derivative liability - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk 0.59 50.57

As at 31st March,zo024 (All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

- Particulars Amount in foreign Amount in
: CUrTency local currency

Financial assets
Trade receivables 1.20 100.08
Derivative Asset - =
Advanece receivable in cash or kind - -

Financial liabilities
Trade payables = -
Borrowings C =
Derivative liability = -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk 1.20 100.08

Sensitivily
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.,

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Impact on loss before tax/equity
31st March,2025 . gist March,2024

Usp sesitivity .

INR/USD appreciates by 5% (31st March, 2024 - (0.03) (0.06)
5%)* i .
INR/USD depreciates by 5% (31st March, 2024 - o 4hE
5%)* i ’

* Holding all other variables constant
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(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt abligations with floating interest rates.

The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.
During 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024, the Company’s borrowings at variable rate were mainly denominated in INR.

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither
the carrying amount nor the future eash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates,

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

On Financial Liabilities:
The exposure of the Company's financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Variable rate borrowings 38,676.12 15,901.87
Fixed rate borrowings 2,202.00 -
Total borrowings 40,968.12 35,001.87
(b) Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as below:

Impact on loss before tax/equity
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Interest expense rates — increase by 50 basis points (50 bps)*

Interest expense rates — decrease by 50 basis points (50 bps)*
* Holding all other variables constant

(iii) Price risk
(a) Exposure

The Company’s exposure Lo equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through
OCI. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio. In general, these investments are not held

(b) Scnsitivity

The table below summarizes the impact of increases/decreases of the share prices on the Company’s equity.

Impact on equity
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Share price - Increase 5%
Share price - Decrease 5%
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(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 34: Segment reporting

The Company's Chief operating decision makers viz. board of directors examine the Company's performance as a single
segment, viz, "Rayon, Transparent paper and Chemicals business”.

a. Geographical information
Revenue from external customers:

31st March,2025 3ist March,2024

VPart_i.culars - Total Segment  Total Segment

_ s . 1 Revenue Revenue
Rayon,Transparent paper and Chemicals business
India 25,312.14 24,284.98
Other countries 443.77 347.38
Total Segment revenue 25,755.91 24,632.36

b. Two of the customers of the entity accounts for approximately 20% and 16% of the sales being made for the year ended
31st March, 2025 (Two of the customers of the entity accounts for approximately 17% and 9% of the sales being made for the
year ended 31st March, 2024)
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Mote 35 : Related Party Transactions

List of Related Parties and relationship * ! :

A) Holding
Kesoram Industries Limited

B) Post Retirement Benefit Plan

B.K. Bitla Group of Companies Provident Fund Institution.
Birla Industries Provident Fund Institution.

KICM Gratuity Fund

C) Others ( With whom transaction has taken place)
MSK Travels and Tours Lid

Arbela Trading & Services Ltd

Kashi Prasad Khandelwal

(All amounts in Rupces Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

{A) Amount of Transactions

Natiré of Transaction/ Relationship

Rent Expense:

Holding

Management Service Fee Expense:

Holding

367.39

239:25

Interest Expense:

Holding

1,399.71

Other expenses through reimbursements

Holding

14.18

0.29

| Loan Taken

Holding

7,539.00

Loan Repayment

Holding

Others

110.5

Tours & Travels Services

Others

21.50

15.90

Provident Fund Contribution

Post Relivemenl Benefit Plan

1,234:77 |

L423-49

| Gratuity Contribulion to KICM

Post Retirement Benefit Plan

Reimbursement elaimed

Post Retirement Benefit Plan

396.8

Interest Received (net of TDS)

Others

6.80

Interest income

Others

06.94

Director Sitting Fees

Others

5.50

(B) Outstanding balances

Nature of Transaction/ Relationship.

Year Endedasat | Year Ended as at
31st March ,2025  31st March ,2024

Payable :

Post Refirement Benefit Plan 444-49 129.67
Payable-Loan :
Holding 21,369.18 13,606.57
Payab]ci(ntcrc;t (Net of TDS)
Holding o . 14121.06 4,424.00
Share Capital il
Holding 92,653.69 92,653.69
Payable :
Tours & Travels services 19.82 24.72

* as certified by the management of the company
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Note no. 36: IND AS 116, Lease Impact
The estimated impact of Ind AS 116 on the Company's {inancial statements as at 31st March, 2025 is as follows:-

Balance Sheet: The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases’ effective 15t April 2019 and applied the Standard to its leases. This has
resulted in recognising a Right-of-use assets of Rs. 112.03 Lakhs and a corresponding lease liability of Rs 112.03 Lakhs as at 15t April 2019.
This has also resulled in re-grouping of Leasehold Land of Rs 220.37 Lakhs under erstwhile lease standard to ‘Right-of-usc assets' as at
1st April 2019,

(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
1. Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31st March, zo25
Category Of RoU Asset

Particulars Land Building

¥

> oS ; : Amount = Amount

Balance as at 01-04-2024

Additions during the year

Deletion during the year

Depreciation 4.85 65.70
Balance as at 31-03-2025 191.26 62.90

2. The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31st Mar, 2025

b b " Particulars

Current Lease Liability
Non Current Lease Liability 10.80

3- The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31st Mar, 2025:

. 2 [ ' Particulars
Balance as at 01-04-2024

Additions during the year
Finance cost acerued during the period

Deletions

Payment of lease liabilities 7497

Balance as at 31-03-2025 70.34

4. Expense pertaining to leases which has been identified as Short Term . 3.79

5. Expense pertaining to leases which has been identified as Low Value . NIL
P p 5

6. Contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31st March, 2025 on an undiscounted basis .

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 315t March, 2025 on an undiscounted basis:

15

R ; * Particulars

Less than one year
One to three years 11.27
Three to five Years _
More than five years -

7. Total amount of Variable Lease Payment. 74.97
8. Nature of lessee's leasing activilies . Warchouse/Oflice Lease

9. Any fulure cash outflows to which the lessee is potentially exposed that
are not reflected in the measurement of lease liabilities NO
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Note 37:- Key Ratios

(a) Current Ratio (times)

! Numerator
Current Assets

Denominator
Current Liabilities

‘315t March 2025 315t March 2024

% Variance-
_Mar'25 .

Reason for Variance

Liabilities

0.25 0.33 -25.36% | Short term ICD taken for
repayment of long term debt
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio (Himes) Tolal Debt ( Total Borowings + Sharcholder's Equity 60.04 5.90 916.98% | Sharcholder's Equity reduced
Total Lease Liability) due to accumulated losses.
(¢} Debt Service Coverage Ratio (times) Earning Available for Debl Service | Gross Interest + Long- -0.082 -0.076 6.68% | NA
term Principal
Repayment+Lease
payments
(d) Return on Equity Ratio (%) Net Income Average Sharelolder's -148.08 -67.69 118.74% | Average Sharcholder's Equity
Equity reduced due to losses in
current financial year.
| (e) Inventory Turnover Ratio (times) Sale of Produets Average Stock 6.08 4.94 23.04% | NA
(f) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio (times) Sale of Products Average Trade 8.76 12.34 ~29.02% [To addressing challenging
Receivables market conditions, debtors has
increased due Lo extended
credit periad,
() Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (times) Cost of Goods Sold Average Trade Payables 3.37 2.59 29.81% Cieditar has Hesrsodusadasa
result of better negotiation
(I) Net Capital Turnover Ralio (limes) Sale of Products Working Capital 0.93 =29.91% | NA
(i) Net Profit Ratio (% Net Income Sale of Products 21.89 -20.25% | NA
(3) Return on Capital Employed (%) EBIT Total Asscls Current -17.48 66.37% | Continious losses due to

under ulilization of capacity.

Nole:-

a) Explanation has heen [urnished for change in ratio by more than 25% as compared to the the preeceding year as stipulated in Schedule 111 1o the ACT.
b) Ratio lor Return on Investment not covered sinee Investment value is NIL




Cygnet Industries Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

Note 38:- Disclosure regarding amendments in Schedule 111

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

a)

b) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off,
¢}  The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
d)  The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including fereign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
i)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
i)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
f The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
g) disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or
any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
The Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the

e)

h)

Note 39:- Code on Social Security, 2020.

The Central Government has published The Code on Social Security, 2020 and Industrial Relations Code. 2020 (“the Codes”) in the Gazette of
India, inter alia, subsuming various existing labour and industrial laws which deals with employees related benefits including post employment.
The effective date of the code and the rules are yet to be notified. The impact of the legislative changes. i any. will be assessed and recognised
post notification of the relevant provisions.

Note q40:- Previous years figure has been re-grouped/re-arranged where ever necessary to make it comparable with current years
figure.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Neha Bothra & Co. of Cygnet Industries Limited
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